
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 1507 MAIN, HAYS, KS 

JUNE 11, 2014  

8:15 A.M.     

1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN.

2. CONSENT AGENDA.

A. Minutes of the regular meeting of May 14, 2014 

Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the 5/14/14 meeting. 

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.

A. A public hearing to consider a request from Vicki E Marsicek for a four foot (4’) variance 
to reduce the east side yard building setback from the required seven feet (7’) to three 
feet (3’) to permit an existing carport recently erected at 415 E 16th Street. (Lot 15, Block 
15 Fairview) (Case #06-14) 

Action:  Consider approval of the 4 foot variance request for the property at 415 E 
16th Street.  

B. A public hearing to consider a request from Luecke Properties, LLC , John Luecke, 
Member, for a special-use permit under Section 71-504 (16) to permit the construction of 
storage units within the “C-2” General Commercial & Service District located at 780 E 
41st Street under parcel of address of 800 E 41st (Tract in the NW/4 of S27-T13S-R18W). 
(Case #07-14) 

Action:  Consider approval of the special-use permit request for the property at 780 E 
41st Street.  

4. NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.

 A.  None 

Action:  None 

5. OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS.

A.  Citizen Comments 

B. Other 

6. ADJOURNMENT.

If you will be unable to attend please contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office at 785- 628-7310.  
Thank   you.  Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should 
contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting 
time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any requests for assistance. 



1

HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

COMMISSION CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL 

MINUTES  

MAY 14, 2014 

8:15 A.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  The Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals met on Wednesday, 

May 14, 2014 at 8:15 a.m. in Commission Chambers of City Hall. 

Roll Call: 

Present: Lou Caplan 

Jerry Sonntag 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert  (arrived after minutes) 

Shane Pruitt  

Chairman Lou Caplan declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

City Staff Present: I.D. Creech, Public Works Director, Jesse Rohr, Superintendent of 

Planning, Inspection and Enforcement, Linda Bixenman, Administrative Assistant of 

Planning, Inspection and Enforcement. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA:

A.  MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2014. There was a motion by Jerry 

Sonntag with a second by Gerald Befort to approve the minutes from the March 12, 2014 

meeting.  There were no corrections or additions to those minutes. 

Vote:  Ayes:   Lou Caplan 

Jerry Sonntag 

Gerald Befort 

 Shane Pruitt  

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:

A.  CASE # 04-14 – REQUEST BY ANDREA CARVER FOR A SPECIAL-USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 

GROUP DAY CARE CENTER UNDER SECTION 71-130 (3) WITHIN A “R-1” SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT AT 3002 E 14TH ST.:  Jesse Rohr presented the above property 

on the overhead visual. 

Andrea Carver presented her application to the board to request a special use permit for 

a Group Day Care Center provided in Section 71-130 (3) of the zoning regulations within a 

“R-1” Single Family Residential Zoning District at her new residence at 3002 E 14th Street. 

Her previous Day Care was on Main Street.  The number of children in the Day Care will 

range from 7 to 12 children depending on the time of year.   



 2 

Jerry Sonntag asked if there had been any feedback from the neighbors.   

 

Lou Caplan asked if there were any comments from the audience. 

 

Alexius Leiker, property owner of 3003 E 14th Street, voiced opposition to the request 

because he was opposed to clients using his driveway to turn-around as is being done 

now.  He did not think it was allowed to have a business within a single family zoning 

district.   Lou Caplan explained that a Group Day Care is permissible if granted a special 

use permit. 

 

Andrea Carver acknowledged his concern.  She stated that she would send letters out to 

all the parents whose children are in her Day Care to make them aware of this.  She has a 

3 car driveway and her cars are in the garage, so there should be plenty of room to turn 

around in her driveway.  Also the property is near the end of the street so the cars should 

be able to exit easily.   The drop-offs are staggered throughout the day.    

 

Shane Pruitt asked if she had much turnover.  Andrea Carver answered that she does not 

have much turnover. 

 

Gerald Befort asked Mr. Leiker of the location of his property.  Mr. Leiker answered that he 

lived across the street.   

 

Tom Lippert stated that he understood Mr. Leiker’s concern.  With the narrow streets, it is a 

tight area to turn around.  He thought if Andrea Carver notified the parents to make the 

turn-around at her driveway, it would keep the parents from using the neighbors’ 

driveways to turn around. 

 

Lou Caplan asked Jesse Rohr if there had been complaints in other single family residential 

districts where there are Group Day Care Centers.   Jesse Rohr answered that they have 

not heard any complaints. 

 

Lou Caplan entertained a motion. 

 

There was a motion by Gerald Befort with a second by Shane Pruitt to grant the exception 

for a special use permit to allow a Group Day Care Center provided in Section 71-130 (3) 

of the zoning regulations within a “R-1” Single Family Residential Zoning District with a 

special use permit at 3002 E 14th Street based on the conditions to be considered have 

been met for an exception for a special use permit.  

 

   

Vote:  Ayes:                       Lou Caplan 

                                            Jerry Sonntag  

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt 

     

 



 3 

B.   CASE # 05-14 – REQUEST BY ADAM STENZEL FOR A SPECIAL-USE PERMIT TO PERMIT A 

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING UNDER SECTION 71-742 (9) IN THE “I-2” HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

LOCATED AT 1314 E 8TH ST.  Jesse Rohr presented the above property on the overhead 

visual.  He pointed out the zoning districts within the area.   
 

Adam W Stenzel presented his application to the board to request a special use permit for 

a multi-family dwelling under Section 71-642 (9) allowed within the “I-2” Heavy Industrial 

zoning district with a special use permit located at 1314 E 8th Street to construct a multi-

family unit contingent on the purchase of an adjacent strip of land that will provide the 

extra land needed to meet the required setbacks.    The proposed multi-family unit would 

set next to an existing duplex. 

 

Jerry Sonntag asked about the entrance to the property and about the driveway next to 

the property.  Mr. Stenzel pointed out the entrance to the property.  The driveway belongs 

to the abutting property owner. He plans to acquire a parcel of adjoining land that would 

include the driveway.    

 

Lou Caplan asked if there were any comments from the audience.  

 

Jason Clark voiced his opposition for residential land use within an industrial zoned district.  

He questioned why the City would consider a residential area within an area zoned for 

heavy industrial uses.   He is concerned about safety for residents and children and could 

imagine complaints that would come from the residents of noise, safety etc.  He pointed 

out that he has to protect his business and employees.  He said he understood that the 

reason for the existing duplex is that it was grandfathered in.   He pointed out that the 

whole block is for heavy industrial uses with the anomaly of residential in the middle.  The 

nearest residential properties are across Old 40 and east on 8th Street.   

 

Jerry Sonntag emphasized the importance not to allow residential uses within a Heavy 

Industrial zoning district.   There are serious safety issues particularly for children.   He 

appreciates what Mr. Stenzel is trying to do, although this is not the right location. 

 

Shane Pruitt pointed out he could see a lot of complaints.   

 

Jesse Rohr pointed out, that as the city office that would have to field complaints; it would 

be difficult, if not impossible to address a resident’s complaint with the surrounding 

properties being heavy industrial land uses.   

 

Lou Caplan explained that the existing duplex had been grandfathered in.  The board 

would not want to encourage increasing residential within the land uses of a Heavy 

Industrial Zoning District.  

 

There was a motion by Jerry Sonntag with a second by Tom Lippert to deny the request for 

a special-use permit for a multi-family dwelling unit provided under Section 71-642 (9) in 

the “I-2” Heavy Industrial District due to that it does not meet the conditions to be 

considered for a special use permit particularly the concern for safety issues, noise and 

dust that can occur in a heavy industrial zoned district. 



 4 

 

Vote:  AYES to deny         Lou Caplan 

                                            Jerry Sonntag  

 Gerald Befort 

 Thomas Lippert 

 Shane Pruitt 

     

 

Lou Caplan informed Mr. Stenzel he would have 30 days to appeal the decision of this 

case to the District Court.    

 

4.      NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS: 

 

A.  None 
 

5.      OFF-AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

A.  Citizen Comments: None. 

 

B.  Other:  Group sessions to begin the process for Rewrite of the Zoning & Subdivision 

Regulations.     Jesse Rohr invited the board members to the group sessions with the focus 

groups and the Planning Commission meeting scheduled for June 3, 2014 as part of the 

beginning process for the rewrite of the Zoning and Subdivision regulations facilitated by 

the consultant, Kendig Keast Collaborative.    

 

A software program will be set up for the opportunity of public comments.  He 

encouraged the board members to attend. 

 

6.     ADJOURNMENT:  Lou Caplan adjourned the meeting at 8:45 a.m. 
 

 

Submitted by: Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Secretary, 

                         Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  

 

























Board of Zoning Appeals Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Exception Application #07-14 

ADDRESS:  800 E 41st St.

OWNER: Luecke Properties 

John Luecke (Authorized Agent) 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Exception – Special Use 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

AGENDA DATE:  June 11, 2014 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The applicant is requesting a special use permit to allow for the construction of 
storage units on the property located at 800 E 41st St. (see attached site drawing) 
Staff recommends approval of the special use permit due to the fact that the 
conditions set forth on a previous special use permit granted in 2013 have been 
fulfilled. 

BACKGROUND: 

• The applicant is requesting a special use permit to allow for the construction of
storage units on the property located at 800 E 41st St.

• The property is zoned C-2, General Commercial and Service District

• All commercial zoning districts require a special use permit from the BZA
before storage units are allowed to be developed

• A special use permit was granted August 14, 2013 for a single storage unit
structure on the same property.  Certain conditions were set forth as a
condition of approval including:

o Allow only one storage building per the request
o Require 60” wrought Iron fence with 6” spacing to extend along the

west to the driveway on the north
o Fence is be erected within 120 days after construction of the structure
o Must meet all City regulations for landscaping and signage
o Screening must meet the City Requirements

City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement



� Page 2

STANDARDS OF EVALUATION: 

Per State Statute 12-759 (e) and City Ordinance Sec. 71-1250 (3) 

In taking into consideration applications for a special use permit, the BZA shall give 
consideration to the comprehensive zoning plan, the health, safety, morals, comfort 
and general welfare of the inhabitants of the community, including, but not limited to, 
the following factors: 

• The stability and integrity of the various zoning districts

• Conservation of property values

• Protection against fire and casualties

• Observation of general police regulations

• Prevention of traffic congestion

• Promotion of traffic safety and the orderly parking of motor vehicles

• Promotion of the safety of individuals and property

• Provision for adequate light and air

• Prevention of overcrowding and excessive intensity of land uses

• Provision for public utilities

• Invasion by inappropriate uses

• Value, type and character of existing or authorized improvements and land
use

• Encouragement of improvements and land uses in keeping with overall
planning

• Provision for orderly and proper urban renewal, development and growth

By ordinance, the BZA does have the authority to impose certain restrictions, 
conditions, terms, time limitations, landscaping, and other appropriate safeguards to 
protect adjoining property.   

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

While storage units have previously been approved on this property, with the 
anticipation that the owner would make further requests for additional units, certain 
conditions were imposed as a condition of approval.  Those conditions, mentioned 
earlier in this memo, seem to have been fulfilled.  Therefore, staff feels the current 
request for additional storage units may be approved.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Motion to approve the application for a special use permit for additional storage units 
as presented on the submitted site plan due to the fact that the conditions set forth on 
a previous special use permit granted in 2013 seem to have been fulfilled.  Staff 



� Page 3

recommends the same conditions placed on the 2013 case be placed on this request 
as well if approved. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exception application

• Statement of justification and site map from owner

• Pictures




















	(1) 06-11-2014
	(2) 05-14-2014
	(3) 415 E 16th Recommendation
	(4) 06-14
	#07-14 800 E 41st St - Storage Units - exception _2_
	07-14



